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ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING & MANAGEMENT 

ROUX ASSOCIATES INC 
209 SHAFTER STREET 
ISLANDIA, NEW YORK  11749  TEL  631-232-2600  FAX  631-232-9898

    

December 2, 2016 

   
 
New York State Department of Environmental Conservation 
Division of Environmental Remediation 
Remedial Section C 
Remedial Bureau B 
625 Broadway 12th Floor 
Albany, New York  12233-7013 

Attention:  Mr. John Grathwol 

Re: Pre-Design Investigation Work 
Former Pratt Oil Works 
Long Island City, New York 
Consent Order Case No. D2-1002-12-07AM-2 
NYSDEC Site No. S241115 

Dear Mr. Grathwol: 

Roux Associates, Inc. (“Roux Associates”), on behalf of ExxonMobil Oil Corporation 
(“ExxonMobil”), has prepared this letter to provide the New York State Department of 
Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) with a summary of the Pre-Design Investigation 
(PDI) work proposed for the Former Pratt Oil Works located in Long Island City, 
New York (Site), within Parcels B, E, and I. As provided in the Feasibility Study Report 
(Roux Associates, 2016), the proposed remedy for Parcels B, E and I include skimming 
with enhancements (i.e. recovery trench or sump), if feasible.  Based on previous 
investigations and historic site use, there is the possibility that historic infrastructure below 
grade may hinder installation of recovery trenches within these areas.  Therefore, this PDI 
work is being conducted in order to determine the feasibility of installing recovery trenches 
within these Parcels.  This work will include completion of a geophysical investigation 
and, based on the results of this investigation, completion of test pits within each of the 
three parcels.  

The geophysical investigation is a non-intrusive survey that is completed above grade 
using ground penetrating radar (GPR) equipment that can detect underground utilities and 
structures.  The location of the proposed GPR survey areas within each of the Parcels is 
shown on the attached Plate 1.  It is important to note that the technology used for this 
investigation can have limitations.  The information transmitted by the GPR equipment 
may be attenuated or distorted by a number of factors, including soil moisture, steel 
reinforced concrete and proximity to other surface and subsurface utilities.  However, the 
results of the geophysical investigation, along with completion of test pits, should provide 
us with the information that is needed to finalize the remedial design. 
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Based on the results of the GPR survey, locations within the surveyed areas will be 
selected for test pitting.  For each parcel, the number of proposed test pits has been selected 
based on the size of the survey area, and the proposed depth of each test pit is based on the 
approximate depth to historically-observed light phase non-aqueous phase liquid 
(LNAPL).  For Parcel B, three test pit locations (if possible) will be selected and 
completed to approximately 10 feet below grade.  For Parcel E, three test pit locations 
(if possible) will be selected and completed to approximately 15 to 20 feet below grade. 
Lastly, for Parcel I, two test pit locations (if possible) will be selected and completed to 
approximately 10 to 15 feet below grade.  Note, the actual depths of the test pits will be 
based on the observation of LNAPL in the field.  Prior to starting the test pits, the selected 
locations will be hand-cleared to confirm no underground utilities or structures are within 
the test pit area.  The test pits will then be completed with an excavator until LNAPL or the 
water table is observed.  The area will be immediately backfilled with existing material and 
restored to meet existing conditions.  If additional backfill is required, it will be procured 
from a certified clean source and documentation will be provided to the NYSDEC for 
approval prior to placement.  All waste generated will be transported and disposed of 
off-Site in accordance with federal and state regulations, to an ExxonMobil-approved 
disposal facility. We anticipate the work will take approximately 10 days to complete for 
each parcel, absent weather or other delays.  Roux Associates will provide full time 
oversight of the work and conduct community air monitoring in accordance with the 
Generic Community Air Monitoring Plan (New York State Department of Health, 2009).  
As the schedule is dependent on Property Owner access approval, we will notify the 
NYSDEC in advance of scheduling the test pit work.  If requested, a summary of the PDI 
work will be provided upon completion. 

Please feel free to contact me with any questions.   

Sincerely, 

ROUX ASSOCIATES, INC. 

Dana Hignell 
Senior Engineer / 
Project Manager 

Enclosure 

cc: Frank Messina, ExxonMobil (Via Email – frank.j.messina@exxonmobil.com) 
Christopher Proce, Roux Associates, Inc. 
Brian Morrissey, P.E., Remedial Engineering, P.C. 




